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Aerial view of Town Point Farm taken in 1940 by the late Ann Hurff Ballard. Bennett’s Creek can be seen in the upper left-
hand corner. The Nansemond River is seen lower left and to the right. The farmland to the left of the road would give way decades

later to the Bennett’s Creek Landing development. (Yes, that’s the airplane wing; Frank Hurff was the pilot.) Photo courtesy Robert Hall
Ballard

Between the River and the Creek

This land has history. The Nansemond River—Ilike the James and other Virginia rivers—was the superhighway
for early English settlers in our area. The land near the mouth of the river was, of course, the first of present day Suffolk
seen by John Smith in 1608 as he explored the area and looked for signs of the lost Roanoke Island colonists.

In 1667 an act was passed to build forts in each County. The Nansemond fort was ordered built at Town Point.
Then in 1680 the General Assembly ordered a town built there. We have little information about that long ago settle-
ment but know that it was later supplanted by the inland town chartered as Suffolk in 1742.

Thanks to these Tour sponsors.
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Richard Bennett’s signature from
Peninsula in Passage; used with permission

The Man Behind the Name

The Bennett family made a splash early in our history. By the 1600s they had acquired thousands of acres by
headright grants along the James and Nansemond Rivers and in the Maryland colony. Richard Bennett came from Eng-
land to join other family members here in 1628. By the 1630s he had patented more than 2,000 acres of his own be-
tween the Nansemond River and the creek that would be named for Bennett. Our friend Karla Smith, the guiding light
behind Peninsula in Passage (and the book from which much of the information in this issue was taken), says that all of
this year’s Tour sites are on pieces of Richard Bennett’s 2,000 acres. He was granted more land at other locations but it
appears that this was the largest piece.

Richard Bennett was elected to the House of Burgesses in 1629 and to the Governor’s Council in 1642 and
1652. He replaced William Berkley as Governor during the reign of Oliver Cromwell.

For decades at least, maybe longer, Richard Bennett’s house was thought to have been up Bennett’s Creek on
property that now belongs to the Eberwine family.

During an archeological dig prior to the development of Bennett’s Creek Landing, a brick foundation was dis-
covered. Findings indicated that it was a very early site and the home of a well-to-do planter. All signs seem to point to
Richard Bennett. The question is, which is the real Bennett home site?

The Bennett Trust

Aside from leaving his name on
the map—Bennett’s Creek, Bennett’s
Pasture Road and several neighborhoods
and sites—Bennett left a plan for philan-
thropy that has lasted more than 300
years.

In his 1675 will—before separa-
tion of church and state—he left 300
acres, the income from which was to be
used by the Church to care for the poor
in that parish. In 1749 another family
member added to that land.

At first it was administered by

the wardens of the Church. (The only
church recognized was the Church of
England until after the Revolution.)
Over time that has changed and oversight
is given to five court-appointed trustees
from the Sleepy Hole and Chuckatuck
boroughs. Many trustees through the

HENDERSON HOUSE AND ‘POOR FARMS”

This photo found in our collection is from an unnamed and undated newspaper.
Its caption explained that this was part of the Richard Bennett poor lands. This
photo appeared in a 1958 publication. We are told that the house has since been
demolished. The Poor Farms are near Glebe Church.

years have served for decades. The name has changed several times (for a time known as the Poor Lands Trust) and now

it is called the Richard Bennett Trust.

Originally the Trust might have provided firewood, food or shelter for the poor. In modern times it is more like-
ly to support larger community needs. Would that we could all leave such a lasting legacy for good.



2 Everything Was Farming
WALTER HURFF The word fruck was in use long before motorized vehicles by that
GROWER AND SHIPFPER name were ever thought of. Truck means to carry or it could be the wagon
FARM PRODUCE that did the carrying or it could be produce or food stuffs for market.
o) RIVERS. VA. Prior to the War Between the States, farms were generally larger
and were more apt to grow money crops such as tobacco or cotton.

1929 letterhead, SNHS collection Following the War, farmers began to take advantage of our longer
growing season and the need for fresh produce in the northern urban centers.

The proximity to the Chesapeake Bay was a definite advantage. By the end of the 19" century the

Atlantic Coastline Railroad offered another shipping option as well. Potatoes, cabbage, kale,
spinach, mustard greens, strawberries, as well as various kinds of melons (and, according to one
source, cut flowers) could be harvested and shipped to market overnight by steamship or railroad.
The area around Driver became known for truck farming.

In 1934 the Eberwine family, who formerly shipped their fresh produce to Baltimore, de-
cided to open a cannery to preserve and sell their surplus crop without the urgency of dealing with
fresh produce. Cans of Eberwine spinach and other leafy vegetables could be found on grocery
store shelves for 50 years until the business closed in 1984.

Another business that was a complement to the area’s truck farming was the Ramsey
Package Corp. which made wooden crates and cartons for packing truck. The factory was near

the intersection of Bennett’s Pasture Road and Driver Lane. SNHS collection

RAMSEY PACKAGE CORP.

MANUFACTURERS OF

BEST QUALITY TRUCK PACKAGES

FACTORY LOCATED
AT DRIVER, VA.

“Everything was farming. Potatoes were the main crop and were
sent by train, truck and boat to market. The boat stopped on Bennett’s
Creek. I grew up picking potato bugs for fun. My job was to drop burlap
covers onto the filled potato barrels and nail the cover on. We’d start at
3:30 a.m. and work until it got too hot for the mules—about 1 p.m.—and
then started up again at 4 p.m. I grew up knowing that I did not want to be
a farmer.

We had a World War I veteran mule named Jack. He had a brown
saddle and USA branded on his hip — and he was mean. We also had a
nice mule named Kate and a Bay horse named Lady that used to draw the
sleigh in the winter. . . . After World War II the community started to
change. I always thought the whole area would develop and I remember
my grandmother saying that one day Portsmouth and Suffolk would be one
city.”

SNHS member and Driver native Judge William Wellington Jones quoted in
Peninsula in Passage

1929 billhead,
SNHS collection

In the last half century the situation has changed for farmers everywhere. The once heavily agricultural area

around the village of Driver is now yielding to housing developments.



Taking to the Water

This past summer members of the May family, now residents of Delaware
and New Jersey, came to visit family sites including Driver. According to family
lore their ancestor, John Arthur Jones, a e
steamboat captain, worked as a blockade
runner out of Bennett’s Creek during the
War Between the States. Later he regularly
took local truck or produce by steamship to
Baltimore for sale. His son, Arthur Llewel-
lyn Jones, became a steamboat captain, too.
He worked out of Norfolk and in the sounds
of North Carolina at first. Eventually he
moved the family to Baltimore and ran ex-
cursions from there.

John Arthur Jones (1834-1905) of

Suffolk was a kinsman/friend of the Arthur Llewellyn Jones (1857-1956)

Driver Joneses. with his son Arthur Carroll Jones
(1894-1985).

The Jeremiah Jones (or Woodward-Jones)
house on Bennett’s Creek was demolished in the 1980s
to make way for development. This house was built
around an earlier frame house with a beam that dated
it to 1716. It was believed to have been the oldest
frame house in Virginia at the time it was demolished.
The land once belonged to Richard Bennett but Trotter
is the earliest name associated with the house.

“During the War Between The States the old
Woodward-Jones House was occupied by Jeremiah
and Virginia Woodward Jones. Their children John,
Jeremiah, Annie Lee, Nettie, and Ella lived there
with their parents and ranged in age from a few
months to 13 years old.

Jeremiah being too old for fighting, used his
small sloop and was a blockade runner for the South-
ern cause. He would go from his wharf down Ben-
nett’s Creek to the Nansemond River and thence to
where it emptied into the James River and then into
Hampton Roads. From there he would go into the
Atlantic and down the coast.”

. Excerpt from an account by Judge William Wel- An archeological study of the Woodward-Jones
lington Jones in The Quiet Regiment. site yielded the bottom of an early Delft punch-
bowl with the slogan Success to the Lasess.




The Tour

This year all our Tour houses are on land that was once part of Richard Bennett’s vast holdings and all four sites
are on land that was once farmland from which produce was shipped.

There is so much more to say about the land between Bennett’s Creek and the Nansemond River—this land with
so many layers of history. We highly recommend Peninsula in Passage by the Crittenden-Eclipse-Hobson Heritage
Foundation now called Suffolk River Heritage. The book is available at several locations and will be available on Tour
days at the schoolhouse/office at Town Point.

4700 Sleepy Hole Road — The Obici House
Former Bay Point Farm

Amedeo Obici, Italian born founder of Planters Peanuts, came to Suffolk
in 1913 and built a plant for the business he and his brother-in-law had started in
Pennsylvania. In 1924 he and his wife Louise bought more than 260 acres on the
Nansemond River. They moved a c. 1870 farmhouse to the site they had chosen
and they built around it, creating an Italian villa on the Nansemond River. They
called it Bay Point Farm. They raised dairy cattle and oper-
ated a dairy that carried the farm name. The Obicis planted
hundreds of trees on the property and accented the natural
beauty of the place with statuary. Mr. Obici kept his yacht
The Alura at the dock. According to one source, the Obicis
had the first telephone in the Driver area with a line that ran
straight to the Planters factory in Suffolk.

Mrs. Obici died in 1938 and Mr. Obici followed in
1947. After a period of other private ownership, the proper-
ty was sold to the City of Portsmouth in 1966. Eventually
that municipality built Sleepy Hole Golf Course on the Obi-
ciland. In 2002 the City of Suffolk bought the property and
leased the entire site to Ronnie Rountree. Mr. Rountree oversaw a major renovation of the Obici
mansion, preserving many of its original fixtures as well as beautiful stained glass windows. The
house is now an events facility with a basement pro shop.

5301 Bennett’s Pasture Road —
Eagle Point Farm

This property was bought by the cur-
rent owner’s parents in 1946. The originally
unimposing farm house with the grand views
of the river was built in 1908 by an Odom
family according to a date brick. The current
owner’s parents made additions and improve-
ments and more have been made by the cur-
rent generation. Small windows have been
replaced by larger, more numerous ones to
embrace the sweeping river views. Evidence
of the artistic skills of the ladies of the house
and the work of artistic friends can be seen
throughout. Treasured family furniture and
portraits from New York and Illinois have a
home here, too. Of note are an original car-
bide gas light fixture and the gas house in the
yard. The former truck farm now grows
nursery stock. Dr. and Mrs. George Cornell,
owners.

1955 newspaper picture of the Cornell house prior to the addition.



2527 Bridge Road — The Willis House
former Town Point Farm

Town Point was the name given this piece of land
early in the written history of the area. During the War Be-
tween the States people along the river saw plenty of activi-
ty with gunboats up and down the river. People at and near
Town Point were able to see and hear the historic Battle of
the Ironclads March 9, 1862.

It was farm land for centuries but truly came into its
own under the hand of Confederate veteran Willis John Lee,
late in the 19™ century. He engaged in truck farming,
opened a store and built a cotton gin. He built a small fleet
of vessels that hauled truck to northern markets in season
and were used for oystering in cold weather. The name
Town Point Farm came to stand for quality. In 1895 Mr.
Lee and his beloved wife Jennie built the large Victorian
dream of a house that stands near the Nansemond River
Bridge today. The Lees had no children but kept the house
filled with family and friends.

They built a schoolhouse on the property for chil-
dren in the area and the Lees provided a teacher, too. The
schoolhouse has other uses now but will be open as part of
our Tour.

Today the house is lovingly maintained by another
family who has filled it with interesting and lovely items of
antiquity that they have collected over time. The Leonard
Willis family, owners.
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117 Riverside Drive — The Northey Home
also part of the former Town Point Farm

This house, like the others on the Tour, enjoys amazing views of the Nansemond River, but P
unlike the others this residence was only built in 1992. The lovely traditional home stands on origi-
nal Town Point Farm land, not far from the site where archeologists found evidence of a substantial |
17™ century dwelling house. There has been speculation that it might have been the home of Coloni- Q¢
al Governor Richard Bennett whose original land grant underlies all of this year’s Tour houses. '

This modern home on the old farm land is lovingly cared for by the family for whom it was
built. The sweeping views of the Nansemond River and Hampton Roads are rivaled only by interior

Mary Jennet Jones Lee (1850-1930) and Willis John Lee
(1846-1919). According to a book about the couple, These
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Twain, she was “the queen of his life and the idol of his love.

vignettes of beautiful things, beautifully displayed. Mr. & Mrs. M. A. Northey, owners.

Members, please note:
The Wreath Sale was not held this year because of supply issues last year.

Also, this year we will not hold our Sugar Plum Bakery because no easy location presented itself. We expect
to bring it back next year. For 2013, please just come take the Tour!




Thanks to our 2013 members, received as of November 5, 2013.
Our memberships run with the calendar year.

Benefactor ($1,000+
Cornell, Phyllis & George
O'Connor, Tommy

Sponsor ($500+)
Adams, Jim & Dana

Birdsong, Cabell & Mary Jane
Butler, Mr. & Mrs. F. Prince
Darden, Bill & Bruce

Darden, Jr., Mr. & Mrs. Austin T.
Johnson, Mr. & Mrs. Jeff

May Family, Christine Jones
McNeal, Dorris

Stockman, Nan & Charles
Walker, Miley & Jean
Woodward, Thomas & Shannon
Woodward, Tom & Sue

Patron ($250+)

Bagnell, Judge & Mrs. Everett
Baker, Robert & Marie
Barlow, Joe & Lynn
Birdsong, Everett & Miriam
Blair, George & Charnell
Blair, James M.

Chase, James S.

Crocker, James E.

Cross, 111, Mr. & Mrs. Harry L.
Cross, IV, Mr. & Mrs. H. Lee
Gordon, Jim & Elizabeth
Herman, Steve

Hobbs, Kermit & Earlene
Kincaid, Mr. & Mrs. Douglas
Lee, Tim & Alice

Maxey, Jr., M. Anderson
Nabhra, Ralph

Webb, Joe & Nancy

Friend ($100+

Adams, Jimmy & Hannah
Alwood, Bob & Fran

Barnett, Maxine E.

Barrett, Thomas and Jennie
Barry, Richard & Carolyn
Beneke, John & Gwynne
Birdsong, Mr. George Y.
Birdsong, Jr., Mr. & Mrs. McLemore
Bosselman, David and Audrey
Brinkley, Mrs. Elsie

Bunch, Dan

Butler, James E. & Linda
Carmean, Byron & Jean
Cherry, Jackie and O.L.
Clanton, William and Victoria
Council, John M. & Anne M.
Council, Michael & Kenda
Councill, Sandra

Cross, Lynn & Hugh

Dalzell, Mrs. Daniel V.
Damiani, Andy

Debranski, Mike & Marty Beamon
Dempsey, Sandy & Nancy
Donahue, Brian and Susannah
Donnelly, Robert

Duggan, Bill & Hunter

Ellis, John C., Jr.

Evans, Richard & Eleanor
Farris, Carl & Denise

Frazier, Henry

Friend, Marianna

Frohman, Carroll Godwin
Gardner, George and Carol
Garrett, James & Susan
Godwin, Judge & Mrs. James C.
Habel, Jim & Becky

Happel, Mrs. Constance Reid
Harrell, Bob & Pearl

Harrell, Mr. & Mrs. John C.
Harry, Courtenay
Henderson, Bert & Anne
Henderson, Charlie & Donna
House, Pat

Jackson, Mr. & Mrs. Stephen R.
Jordan, C.F. & Linnie
Joyner, William & Mary Brenda
Kerpelman, Howard E.

Kyle, Betty Anne

Matthews, Catherine Harrell
McCutcheon, Charlotte A.
McPhail, Phil & Barbara
Mountcastle, Myrtle Ann
Musick, Susan

Newsom, Sarah N.

Nixon, LaRoyce & Carroll
Norcross, John & Cleta
Odom, Betty & Henry

Picot, Julien

Pond, Dick & Sylvia

Pond, Wayland & Kathryn
Powell, Bill & Roberta
Pretlow, Lila E.

Pruden, III, Peter

Pruden, Mrs. Phyllis H.
Pruitt, John & Judy

Rawls, Frank & Sally
Riddick, Larry & Mary Anne
Rose, Lynn K.

Saunders, Mack & Ruth
Saunders, Whitney & Ellen
Savage, Mr. & Mrs. Thomas
Sherard, Sam & Mary
Shotton, Charles & Carol Lynne
Simmer, Edward & Peggy
Simpson, Polly & Henry
Small, Lena

Smith, Pat Holladay
Spaulding, Susan

Taylor, Fred & Adrienne
Totten, Mr. & Mrs. Danny

Verdirame, Dr. & Mrs. Joseph L.

Williams, Jesse & Mary
Woodward, Susan C.A.
Woolford, N. Polk

Yeoman, Beverly & Phil Rehrig
Young, Hubert & Christine

Contributing ($50+)
Ascher, David C.

Baggett, Dennis

Bailey, Bill & Annette
Bialobrzewski, Angela
Bollinger, Dixie & Stan
Bowman, Marie & Lee
Bradshaw, James & Becky
Bright, John & Vera
Brothers, Mr. & Mrs. Tom S.
Bunting, Bill & Sandra
Byrum, Jarvis R. & Phyllis C.
Byrum, Joseph & Gloria
Callis, George & Susan
Carr, Scott & Heather
Carter, Barbara & John
Clement, Becky & Joe
Click, Anne Scott N.
Cross, Parker

Davis, Sue H.

Drummond, Linda & Billy
Duke, Lydia G.

Fitzgerald, Shirley R.

Fulgham, Dr. & Mrs. William
Gatling, George

Goldberg, Don & Kay
Harlow, John

Harrell, Faye S.
Hazelwood, Thomas & Karen
Helms, Linda L. & Bill
House, David

House, Jr., Rob & Denson
Howe, Jr., Mr.& Mrs. Frederic N.
Hughes, Glenn & Karen
Hurley, Bucky & Kay
Jaffe, Mr. & Mrs. Gerald
Johnson, David A.
Johnson, John & Julie
Kapinus, Ed & Barbara
Kelley, Kermit & Frances
King, Lee & Henrietta
Lawing, Victoria

Leach, Grace & Jack
Little, John F.

Maust, Randy & Jeanette
McLemore, Mardane
Moore, Jim & Jane
Nemish, John & Janet
Odom, Hunter and Linda
Panton, Fan G.

Pettit, Jack & Sarah
Pichel, Mr. & Mrs. M. R.
Poole, Conley & Eleanor G.
Porter, Elizabeth V.
Poulson, Mrs. Melvin B.
Powell, Bill & Roberta
Pruden, Tom & Gail
Raines, Randy & Kim
Rau, Jeff

Rountree, Blanche E.
Rudy, Clint

Salmon, Jim & Elaine
Sary, Kevin

Saunders, Martha
Schaubach, Dwight & Jane
Schlatter Family

Sobel, Faye

Speight, Bennie & Bonnie
Taylor, Mr. & Mrs. John R.
Thomas, Sid & Janice
Tompert, Robert & Leila
Trump, Joyce H.

Trump, Jr., Bobby Lee
Tyler, Stewart

West, Jack & Barbara
White, Jimmy & Hazel
Williams, Nancy
Williams, Richard & Sue
Wills-Hunter, Harriet
Winslow, Burwell & Alvis
Wooldridge, Joyce & Bill

Supporting ($25+)
Abernathy, Charles M. & Ann B.

Alexandria VA Library
Arthur, Gene & Brenda
Arthur, Tommy & Jane
Austin, Fred H.

Ballard, Mary B.
Barrett, Harold and June
Bilby, Sean C. & Dana
Blair, Susan

Bradley, Karen G.
Brinkley, Mr. & Mrs. David L.
Brooks, Elizabeth Dixon
Brown, Al

Burns, Victor & Mary

Burton, Sue P.

Butler, Gary

Cathey, Mr. & Mrs. Forrest H.
Chandler, Sue Hundley
Cook, Darrell E.
Coulbourne, Robert
Crumpler, John & Terri
Darden, Charles & Yvonne
Davis, Dianne Harrell

Day, Barry & Rhonda
Dolan, Elizabeth Brothers
Ellis, Glenn E.

Eure, Jack & Mary Ann
Everett, Anne P.

Faircloth, John & Nancy
Fausel, Mary Anne & George
Fitzhugh, Berry

Gardner, Jr., David B.
Greene, Dutch & Ann

Haas, Conrad & Marie
Hare, Steve

Harms, Jean H.

Harper, Linda Howerton
Harry, Jack & Billie

Hart, F. Lee, III

Hightower, Howard & Jennifer
Hollowell, Sandra LoCascio
Humphrey, Faye Gordon
Hunter, JoAnn S.

Hyatt, Ramona

Irby, Skip & Chris

James, Linda Annas
Jennings, James L.

Jones, JoAnn Harrell

Jones, Stephen M.

Kalie, Jennie Lee Cross
Kirchmier, Beverley
Kirkpatrick, E. Stuart
Kress, Jack

Lane, Cindy

Latimer, III, Mr. & Mrs. Arthur L.
Lowe, Sue Draper

Lynch, Bill

Mansfield, Bob & Charlotte
March, Clyde V.

Martin, Thomas L.
McGabhee, Terry & Beverly
Milligan, Anna Vann
Morgan, Marian V.
Mottley, Terry & Irma R.
Newhard, John

Norfleet, Dr. & Mrs. Ben
Nurney, Ann & Jack
O'Connor, Betsy T.

Odom, Polly Vann

Olsen, Ted

Owens, Sr., Carlton W.
Parker, David & Judy
Parker, Jim & Nancy
Peachy, Bill & Dixie

Pettit, Tom

Pisani, Cheryl A.

Pond, 111, Richard & Jen
Ralph, Bobby L. & Joyce
Ray, Patsy Powell

Riddick, Linda

Roberts, Surry

Rountree, Steven and Wanda
Ruden, Iris

Rudin, Shirley Boyette
Russell, Jr., Mr.& Mrs. C. Edward
Sanderson, Mrs. Nancy Bruce
Saunders, Bruce P.



Savage, III, W. R.
Seiling, Edith
Slack, Lee

Sledge Jr., Mr. & Mrs. Charles R.

Smith, Audrey P.
Stallings, Billie

Staylor, Mills & Gin
Taylor, Cindy

Thanos, Voula
Thompson, Terri V.
Trostle, Henry and Melinda
Umphlette, Mrs. L. Carrol
Walsh-Johnson, Mary H.
Ward, Gordon Carter
Watterson, Nita

Webb, Joby & Mindy
West, Randy

White, Don & Nancy
Winslow, Sharon
Wommack, Jane B.
Young, Molly & Rutledge

We are grateful for all gifts and
apologize for any accidental omis-
sions. If we have made an error in
acknowledging your contribution
please contact us at 757-539-2781

or snhs@verizon.net.
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Map by Karla Smith. Used with permission.



Thanks to our 2013 corporate members:

Bank Street Circle ($2.500+)

Birdsong Peanuts

Community Banking Perfected
Suffolk Circle ($500+)

LW’s Lawn Service, LLC

LeOtis Williams 615 E. Pinner Street
lanager

o wews  JOWNEBANK
Complete Suffolk, VA 23439

Landscaping "
Services  ppone (757) 925.0747 The Best Bankers. Hometown Banking.

gcggﬁggd Fax (757) 925.4943

“We don't mind working in the heat
and our prices just can't be beat

Seaboard Circle ($250+)
=2 OBICI  SUFFOLK

, Healthcare Foundation mSURANCE
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Printer—insert Phillips-Dawson House picture and
info here

SNHS Board

Fred Taylor, President
PHS Board Lynn Cross, Vice President
Lee King, President Kate Cross, Secretary
Sue Woodward, Secretary Tommy Arthur, Asst. Treas.
Lynn Barlow, Treasurer Sue Woodward, Historian
Darrell Cook Sandra Councill
Susannah Donahue

Lee King
Susan Musick
Nancy Verdirame
Nita Bagnell, ex officio

To SNHS
In Memory of In Honor of
W. Holmes Small Sue Woodward
Hubert & Christine Young Linne Jordan
Dutch & Ann Greene

In Memory of

Gifts and Memorials

Tom & Sue Woodward
Josephine Milner Montgomery and
Frances Darden Musick

Sue Woodward
Thomas J. O’Connor, 1V and
John Thanos

Dick & Sylvia Pond
Sally Smith

Joe & Becky Clement

Jack & Grace Leach

To the Phillips-Dawson House

Sally Smith
Joyce Trump

Printer—insert Train Station picture and info here

From the Train Station




37th Annual Candlelight Tour December 7 & 8, 1—5 pm

Willis Home

old Town Point Farm
2527 Bridge Road

Northey Home

in Bennett’s Creek Landing
117 Riverside Drive

Cornell Home

Eagle Point Farm
5301 Bennett’s Pasture Road

Obici House

old Bay Point Farm
4700 Sleepy Hole Road
1—4 pm

Return address/logo

Return Service Requested
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